
MINUTES OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 

October 27, 2014 

 

 

The regular meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairman Mark Moore at 

7:03 p.m. at the Village Hall. 

 

Members present:  Chairman Mark Moore, Amy Flores, Walter Oakley, Kurt Schultz, and David 

Semmelman. 

 

Members absent:  William Cotey and Dan Donahue. 

 

Village Staff present:  John Spoden, Director of Community Development; David Smith, Senior 

Planner; and Johanna Bye, Associate Planner. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

PC 14-23 Griffin & Gallagher, LLC, Applicant 

  1429 Peterson Road 

 

Request is for a Special Use Permit for a Fitness Center for property located in a   

C-4, Shopping Center Commercial District. 

 

Mr. David Smith, Senior Planner, introduced the request for the Special Use Permit.  Mr. Smith 

stated that the petitioner is requesting a Special Use Permit for a Fitness Center for property 

located in a C-4, Shopping Center Commercial District at 1429 Peterson Road.  Mr. Smith stated 

that the petitioner is proposing to consolidate three adjoining commercial tenant spaces, creating 

one larger space within the Butterfield Square Shopping Center, totaling approximately 4,800 

square feet in area in order to build out and establish an Anytime Fitness Center franchise.  Mr. 

Smith stated that the petitioner is proposing to operate the Anytime Fitness Center in the 

Butterfield Square Shopping Center 24 hours a day, 7 days per week per their business model. 

 

Ms. Andrea Crowley, Griffin & Gallagher, LLC, 10001 South Roberts Road, Palos Hills, 

Illinois, agent representing the petitioner, stated that the petitioner is requesting a Special Use 

Permit in order to allow the petitioner to open and operate an Anytime Fitness Center in the 

Butterfield Square Shopping Center.  She stated this establishment is part of a business chain 

with over 50 Anytime Fitness Centers existing in Illinois and over 2,300 in the U.S. overall.  She 

stated that it is a 24 hour, 7 day a week operation.  She stated that it is staffed during the day, but 

not at night.  She stated that they will install high tech security equipment for safety, including 

up to 16 cameras on site.  She stated that users of the facility will be provided panic buttons for 

use in the late hours.  She stated that the actual use of the facility in the late hours is anticipated 

to be low.  She stated that this business model has become very popular. 

 

Ms. Nuvala Kavanagh, 1572 Old Barn Circle, stated that she is concerned about safety on the 

premises late at night when it is not staffed. 

 

Ms. Crowley stated that the Kinko’s located in the same shopping center is a 24 hour operation. 



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 9 

 

Mr. John Stewart, 1501 Old Barn Circle, stated that he does not understand why the petitioner 

has chosen this location for this type of facility.  He stated that this is a 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. 

community. 

 

Ms. Crowley stated that this site was chosen by the Anytime Fitness Corporation due to the 

demographics in the immediate vicinity. 

 

Ms. Barbara Gohr, 1601 Old Barn Circle, stated Kinko’s does not back up to Old Barn Circle.  

She stated that she is concerned about Anytime Fitness not being staffed for its late night hours 

of operation.  She stated that she is concerned about who is monitoring the camera monitors.   

She stated that she is concerned about the potential for an increase in traffic. 

 

Ms. Crowley stated that all of the parking will be in front of the building.  She stated that around 

7:00 p.m. is the peak use time for this facility. 

 

Mr. Sami Khahil, petitioner, 8080 West 95
th

 Street, Hickory Hills, Illinois, stated that the 

security cameras will be on 24 hours a day.  He stated that every member is recorded when they 

enter the facility.  He stated that there is an advantage to have one owner for the proposed tenant 

space instead of having three different owners for the current three individual tenant spaces.  He 

stated that this business model operates with an expected low customer volume. 

 

Ms. Mary Elghatit, 1509 Old Barn Circle, stated that she is concerned about the security and that 

the customer keys can be stolen.  She stated that she wanted to know who will be monitoring the 

camera monitors.  Mr. Khahil, stated that the security camera monitors will be monitored. 

 

Ms. Elghatit asked if the panic alarm system proposed will alert the police when these alarms are 

triggered.  Mr. Khahil stated that yes, the police will be alerted.  He stated that both the police 

and fire departments will be alerted. 

 

Ms. Crowley stated that there will be an indoor land line phone available. 

 

Ms. Gohr asked if the camera monitors will be actively monitored 24 hours a day.  Ms. Crowley 

stated that the monitors will be monitored by staff continuously. 

 

Ms. Gohr stated that she is concerned that the Anytime Fitness customer pass key system can be 

abused and could permit tailgating through the entrance where people enter or follow customers 

as they use their key and enter the facility. 

 

Ms. Crowley stated that the system is designed to count or prevent that kind of tailgating 

behavior.  She stated that there have been no reported ‘tailgating’ incidents at the other Anytime 

Fitness locations. 

 

Ms. Gohr stated that she is opposed to this facility if it operates 24 hours a day without staff in 

the late night hours. 

 

  



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 9 

 

Mr. Brian Smith, 1508 Old Barn Circle, stated that he is opposed to this as a 24 hour operation if 

it operates without staff in the late night hours.   

 

Ms. Kavanagh, stated that she is concerned the public’s concerns will not be addressed 

satisfactorily.  She stated she is still concerned that the facility is a 24 hour per day facility. She 

stated that she is concerned about the potential noise levels and the security.  She stated that she 

is concerned about the potential increase in traffic. 

 

Commissioner Schultz asked for clarification about the customer capacity for the proposed 4,800 

square foot tenant space.  

 

Ms. Crowley stated that they do not anticipate that the maximum capacity within the tenant space 

will peak. 

 

Ms. Dana Meadowcraft, Butterfield Square Shopping Center leasing agent, stated that the prior 

tenants in the three spaces that Anytime Fitness Center is seeking to occupy were a florist, a 

boutique, and a framing shop. 

 

Commissioner Schultz stated that he does not anticipate that this proposed use will present a 

negative impact upon the local traffic.  He asked for clarification for the exterior lighting.  Ms. 

Meadowcraft stated that she anticipates that they will increase the lighting in the parking lot. 

 

Mr. Joe White, Butterfield Square Shopping Center leasing agent, stated that they just recently 

finished installing new parking lot light standards.  He stated that the parking lot lighting has 

increased.  He stated that the parking lot light standards are set to photometric timers.  He stated 

that this will enable them to keep the lights on for 24 hours if necessary.  He stated that the rear 

building wall lights have glare shields and should not propose a problem for the residential 

neighbors to the south. 

 

Commissioner Schultz asked if the parking lot lights can be turned off as necessary.  Mr. White 

stated that a certain amount of light should remain turned on for security purposes while other 

light standards can be turned off.  In the alternative, all parking lot lights can remain turned on. 

 

Commissioner Schultz stated that with all of the parking lot lights turned on that there may be 

too much glow that could cause a nuisance.  He asked if outdoor or exterior speakers are 

anticipated to be installed.  Mr. Khahil stated that there will be no outdoor speakers. 

 

Commissioner Schultz asked how winter time snow and ice will be maintained.  Mr. White 

stated that the center has a “no tolerance” policy and will require that snow removal is 

persistently addressed. 

 

Commissioner Schultz asked for clarification regarding the exterior installed security cameras.  

Ms. Crowley stated that there will be two (2) security cameras installed on site. 

 

  



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 9 

 

Commissioner Oakley asked how this 24 hour facility will be impacted by the conceal and carry 

law for firearms.  Ms. Crowley stated that there will be no firearms allowed within the facility a 

signage will be posted in accordance with that policy. 

 

Commissioner Oakley asked for clarification regarding the petitioner’s First Responder policy.  

Ms. Crowley stated the alarm system will be connected to the 911 system. 

 

Chairman Moore asked for clarification regarding to the parking restrictions at the rear of the 

building.  Ms. Crowley stated that they can post signs at the rear of the building to restrict 

parking. 

 

Chairman Moore asked for clarification regarding the available parking in the front of the tenant 

space in the main parking lot.  Ms. Crowley stated that they do not anticipate that there will be 

more than 17 to 20 parking spaces used during the peak hours of operation between 6 p.m. and 7 

p.m. 

 

Mr. White stated that the area in the middle of the Butterfield Square Shopping Center is wide 

open with available parking spaces. 

 

Chairman Moore asked about the daytime staff hours.  Ms. Crowley stated that Staff will arrive 

either at 9 a.m. or 10 a.m. and work a regular business day. 

 

Chairman Moore stated that he is concerned about injury taking place during non-peak hours or 

late at night. 

 

Ms. Crowley stated that the petitioner will incorporate a panic button system.   

 

Chairman Moore asked the petitioner what they would like for the Plan Commission to do 

tonight.  Ms. Crowley stated that she would like for the Plan Commission to render a positive 

recommendation to the Village Board tonight for the request for the Special Use Permit. 

 

In the matter of PC 14-23, Commissioner Semmelman moved, seconded by Commissioner 

Oakley, to recommend the Village Board of Trustees approve a Special Use Permit for a Fitness 

Center for property located in a C-4, Shopping Center Commercial District, subject to the 

following condition: 1) That existing striped parking spaces located at the rear of the building be 

made available for employees. 

 

Motion carried 5 - 0. 

 

Ayes:  Moore, Flores, Oakley, Schultz, Semmelman 

Nays:  None 

Absent: Cotey, Donahue 

 

  



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 9 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 
 

PC 12-01 Village of Libertyville, Applicant 

 

Request is for Text Amendments to Sections 2 and 11 of the Libertyville Zoning 

Code relating to sign regulations. 

 

Mr. John Spoden, Director of Community Development, stated that there were three (3) items 

that the Plan Commission asked Staff to take a look at from their last meeting relative to the 

proposed Sign Code changes.  He stated that the first item was the wall signs specifically in the  

C-3 and C-4 commercial districts.  He stated that the second item that Staff has done some 

additional work on is regarding the multi-tenant sign regulations.  He stated that the Village of 

Libertyville is one of the few villages that have considered multi-tenant signs as a separate sign 

type.  He stated that most other communities that were researched only allowed for one 

freestanding sign whether it was multi-tenant or not.  He stated that the third item that Staff 

continued to work on was regarding the inflatable balloons as temporary signs. 

 

Ms. Johanna Bye, Associate Planner, stated that through her research from looking at how other 

communities regulate their commercial wall signs, she discovered four basic methods to regulate 

the size and placement of commercial wall signs.  She stated that the first way is to base the size 

of wall signage on the size of the commercial tenant floor area.  She stated that a second way is 

to base size of the wall sign as a percentage of the area of the front facade of the building wall.  

She stated that the third way was to define a limited area of the front facade of the building wall 

for sign placement.  She stated that the fourth method was to base wall sign placement on the 

width of the tenant space. 

 

Commissioner Schultz stated that he prefers to correlate the area of the facade to the wall sign 

size.  He stated that he prefers to cap the maximum permitted wall sign size to 10% of the area of 

the facade. 

 

Commissioner Flores stated that she prefers the lesser sign size. 

 

Chairman Moore stated that he prefers basing the size of the sign on the facade area not upon a 

designated area of the wall.  He stated that he likes to the ability to cap the percentage at 8% of 

the facade area.  He asked for clarification as to how non-conforming existing signs would be 

handled. 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that when businesses change and new business request sign permits, they 

would then be required to be code compliant.  He stated that Staff has recommended to base size 

of the wall sign as a percentage of the area of the front facade of the building wall as well and 

will further clarify the definition of ‘facade’. 

 

Ms. Bye stated that if there are multiple facades for one commercial tenant then there is still the 

question as to which facades are subject to the percentage cap. 

 

  



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 9 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that Staff can revisit how facade is defined relative to the limits placed upon 

wall signs. 

 

Ms. Bye stated that the Village of Libertyville is one of the few communities that regulate 

freestanding multi-tenant signs separately from other freestanding business signs.  She stated that 

many other communities permit only one freestanding business sign for a commercial property 

whether it is a multi-tenant sign or sign advertising for a single commercial business.  She stated 

that there are a number of ways the other communities regulate the size of freestanding signs 

including basing the size on the size of the lot or the width of the lot or the amount of leasable 

space or the speed of traffic going past the commercial property and the width of the right of 

way. 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that the current code allowance in Libertyville is based upon the size of the lot 

for multi-tenant signs in the C-3 and C-4 zoning districts. 

 

Chairman Moore stated that he likes basing the sign size on leasable space. 

 

Commissioner Schultz stated that he agrees that the sign size should be proportional to the size 

of the development. 

 

Chairman Moore likes limiting the number of freestanding signs to only one with a maximum 

allowed sign size. 

 

Commissioner Flores stated that she would like to see sign panels replaced with a white panel for 

vacant tenant spaces not simply flip over existing panels of the previous tenants.  

 

Ms. Bye stated that the next item for discussion is inflatable balloons.  She stated that a method 

to measure a sign area on inflatable balloons has not been crafted as of yet. 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that inflatable balloons are considered temporary signs, but sign area 

maximums have not been applied. 

 

Ms. Bye stated that most of the communities that they researched did not have regulations for 

inflatable balloons in terms of limiting their number or size while other communities simply 

restricted them altogether. 

 

Chairman Moore asked why the Code couldn’t be amended to prohibit inflatable balloons.  Mr. 

Spoden stated that there would be objections from the vehicle dealerships as they seem to really 

appreciate their use for advertisement purposes.  He stated that the dealerships argue that that the 

balloons catch the attention of the customer’s children which then brings them into their lots. 

 

Chairman Moore stated that he is in favor of prohibiting inflatable balloons. 

 

Commissioner Flores stated that she is not in favor of the wind waver flags as well. 

 

  



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 9 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that they will come back next month with a final draft and redline version of 

the proposed sign ordinance changes. 

 

In the matter of PC 12-01, Commissioner Schultz moved, seconded by Commissioner Donahue, 

to continue this item to the November 24, 2014, Plan Commission meeting. 

 

Motion carried 5 - 0. 

 

Ayes:  Moore, Flores, Oakley, Schultz, Semmelman 

Nays:  None 

Absent: Cotey, Donahue 

 

PC 14-24 Village of Libertyville, Applicant 

 

Request is for Text Amendments to various sections of the Libertyville Zoning 

Code. 

 

Mr. David Smith, Senior Planner, stated that on January 13, 2013 the Village Board of Trustees 

adopted the revised Zoning Code.  He stated that the Zoning Code included the State of Illinois 

Noise Code as a part of its adoption.  He stated that since that date, Staff has had difficulty in 

applying the Code as the State does not offer assistance and the detail level of the Code requires 

a much more expensive sound level meter than the Village owns.  He stated that Staff is 

proposing to simplify the Code at this time. 

 

Mr. John Spoden, Director of Community Development, stated that the past attempt to enforce 

the State adopted noise regulations were problematic.  He stated that there are two examples to 

illustrate this point.  He stated that the first example is Aptar on Commerce Drive had operated a 

fan and there was a woman who lived a 1½ miles away who complained about the noise.  He 

stated that it took Staff quite a while to identify the noise source.  He stated that it was a difficult 

process because of how the Code was written.  He stated that another example is with the car 

wash that backs up to residential property.  He stated that the Village would have had to hire a 

consultant to interpret our own noise regulations which would have been too costly. 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that it was his insistence to amend the Code to respond to noise nuisances 

taking place on the public right of way.  He stated that the Village receives complaints constantly 

about Shakou restaurant’s outdoor speakers.  He stated that currently in the Code there is no 

restriction against what Shakou is doing. 

 

Commissioner Flores asked if there are any existing businesses that would violate the proposed 

amendment.  Mr. Spoden stated that he is not certain if the proposal would put any business into 

a noncompliant status. 

 

Commissioner Oakley asked if the existing wind turbine use limitations for allowed noise levels 

would be different than what is proposed in tonight’s amendments.  Mr. David Pardys, Village 

Attorney, stated that the noise restrictions may be different than what is in the Code for other 

uses. 



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 8 of 9 

 

Mr. Smith stated that Staff will investigate whether or not to make the noise ordinance consistent 

with the regulations for the wind turbines. 

 

Chairman Moore asked what the repercussions are in place to respond to the construction crews 

who are working before 7:00 a.m.  Mr. Spoden stated that it is a Police Department enforcement 

issue.   

 

Commissioner Schultz stated that he supports simplifying the noise ordinance. 

 

Chairman Moore stated that he supports simplifying the noise ordinance and he supports looking 

at some of the newer identified noise nuisances such as outdoor speaker music coming from 

some of the downtown restaurants. 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that Staff will further refine the proposed noise regulations and also talk to 

Main Street Libertyville relative to the outdoor speaker music in the downtown.   

 

In the matter of PC 14-24(1), Commissioner Oakley moved, seconded by Commissioner Schultz, 

to continue this item to the November 24, 2014, Plan Commission meeting. 

 

Motion carried 5 - 0. 

 

Ayes:  Moore, Flores, Oakley, Schultz, Semmelman 

Nays:  None 

Absent: Cotey, Donahue 

 

Mr. David Smith, Senior Planner, stated that in order to be consistent with the definition of 

corner side lot line and front lot line as provided in the Zoning Code, Staff is proposing to correct 

the Zoning Code Appendix Page A-13 which incorrectly depicts the locations of these lot lines. 

 

Mr. John Spoden, Director of Community Development, stated that there is also an inconsistency 

in the illustration depicted on Appendix Page A-15 as well and should be corrected. 

 

In the matter of PC 14-24(2), Commissioner Oakley moved, seconded by Commissioner Schultz, 

to recommend the Village Board of Trustees approve an amendment to the Libertyville Zoning 

Code in order to correct the diagrams set forth in the Appendices of the Zoning Code to be 

consistent with the text of the Zoning Code. 

 

Motion carried 5 - 0. 

 

Ayes:  Moore, Flores, Oakley, Schultz, Semmelman 

Nays:  None 

Absent: Cotey, Donahue 

 

  



October 27, 2014, Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 

Page 9 of 9 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND DISCUSSION: 
 

Mr. John Spoden, Director of Community Development, stated that Cedar Street Company is 

scheduled to be before the Village Board for tomorrow night.  He stated that they have proposed 

to reduce the number of dwelling units to 34 with five (5) of those units being affordable units. 

 

Mr. Spoden stated that the Village has been awarded a grant to help produce a T.O.D. plan for 

the downtown. 

 

Commissioner Schultz moved, seconded by Commissioner Flores, to adjourn the Plan 

Commission meeting. 

 

Motion carried 5 - 0. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 


